
 Page 1 
 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF NEVADA 

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 
NEVADA STATE LIBRARY, ARCHIVES and PUBLIC RECORDS 

100 N. Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 

(775) 684-3411   *   Fax (775) 684-3426   *   TDD (775) 687-8338 
 

The Committee to Approve Schedules for the Retention  
and Disposition of Official State Records 

 
Meeting Notice 

 
DATE: August 10, 2016 
TIME: 1:15 p.m. 
LOCATION: Nevada State Library and Archives Building 

 Board Room 
 100 North Stewart Street 
 Carson City, Nevada 89701 

 
Notice:  The Committee to Approve Schedules for the Retention and Disposition of Official State 
Records may address items out of sequence.  The Committee may combine two or more agenda 
items for consideration, and the Committee may remove an item from the agenda or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.  

 
Agenda 

 
  1. Call to Order, Welcome, Roll Call 
  
 2. Public Comment 

Comment may be limited to 5 minutes at the discretion of 
the Chairman. 

  
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 3. Review, correct, if necessary, and approve the minutes 

from the June 8, 2016 meeting 
  
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 4. Gaming Control Board:  Investigations Division, 

Corporate Securities Section 
 A. RDA 1993240:  Nevada Gaming Company Files 

B. RDA 1991804:  Underwriters Files 
 

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 5. Department of Public Safety, General Services Division, 
Fiscal Unit 

 A. RDA 2016011:  Customer Files 
  
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 6. Department of Administration, Human Resource 

Management, Central Records;  
 A. RDA 2003100:  Employee Service Jacket 
  
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 7. Governor’s Office of Economic Development 

 

Patrick Cates 
Director 

 

BRIAN SANDOVAL 
Governor 

Jeffrey Kintop 
Administrator 



 Page 2 
 

 A. RDA 2003005:  Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Records 

  
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 8. Nevada System of Higher Educations –Multiple 

modifications and deletions to document retention 
schedule 

 9. Nevada Department of Transportation Update 
(Discussion Only) 

  
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 10. Discuss future agenda items 

Environmental Protection:  Bureau of Industrial Site 
Cleanup 
Commission on Ethics 

  
 11. Public Comment 

Comment may be limited to 5 minutes at the discretion of 
the Chairman. 

  
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 12. Confirm time of next meeting 

Next meeting scheduled for September 14, 2016 at 1:15pm 
  
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 13. Adjourn  

 
 
  



 Page 3 
 

General Information 
  

Members of the public who are disabled or who may require special accommodations at the 
meeting are requested to notify State Records in writing at 100 N. Stewart Street, Carson City, NV 89701 
or by calling (775) 684-3411 or by email to adan.aguilera@admin.nv.gov prior to the meeting date. 
 A complete copy of the information submitted to the Committee for this “Agenda and Meeting 
Notice” is available by contacting State Records at (775) 684-3411. This agenda, the Committee Packet 
and all other supplemental material made available to each Committee member will also be made 
available to the public on the website of the Department of Administration, Nevada State Library, Archives 
and Public Records prior to the meeting date and may be found at:   www.nsla.nv.gov (under Records 
Management, State Records Committee).  
 The material is also available by contacting Adan Aguilera at adan.aguilera@admin.nv.gov 
 
This agenda has been posted at the following locations: 
 
Nevada State Library, Archives and Public Records 
100 North Stewart Street 
Carson City, NV 89701 

The Nevada Legislature 
401 S. Carson St. 
Carson City, NV 89701 

  

Washoe County Library     
301 South Center Street     
Reno, NV 89505 

The Las Vegas/Clark County Library District 
1401 E. Flamingo Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89119 

 
NSLA website:   www.nsla.nv.gov 

 

 
As required by NRS 232.175: 
https://notice.nv.gov/  Under the Department of Administration, State Records Committee. 
 

mailto:adan.aguilera@admin.nv.gov
http://www.nsla.nv.gov/
http://www.nsla.nv.gov/
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-232.html#NRS232Sec2175
https://notice.nv.gov/


 Page 4 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

The Committee to Approve Schedules for the 

Retention and Disposition of Official State Records 
The “State Records Committee” 

Minutes for June 8, 2016 
 

1:  Call to Order, Welcome, Roll Call 

 The meeting was called to order at 1:16 pm. The meeting was held at the Nevada State Library and 

Archives Board Room, at 100 N. Stewart St, Carson City, NV. 

Committee Members: 

Scott Anderson, for Barbara K. Cegavske, Secretary of State - Present 

Kathryn Etcheverria, Governors Appointee - Present 

Sarah Bradley, for Adam Laxalt, Nevada Attorney General - Excused 

Jeff Kintop, Administrator, Nevada State Library, Archives and Public Records – Present 

Stacie Hancock, For Patrick Cates, Director of the Department of Administration – Excused 

Jim Earl, for Shannon Rhaming, Administrator, Enterprise Information Technology Services – 

Present 

Staff: 

Teri Mark, State Records Manager, NSLAPR – Excused 

Cynthia Laframboise, State Archives Manager, NSLAPR – Present 

Sara Martel, Senior Records Analyst, NSLAPR – Present 

Gerald Lindsay, Senior Records Analyst, NSLAPR – Present 

Michelle Byrne, Administrative Assistant, NSLAPR – Present 

Kimbra Andrews, Department of Transportation – Present 

 

Guest Present: 

Melinda Ridgely, Parole and Probation – Present 

Shannon Wells, Parole and Probation – Present 

Donna Wix, Nevada Department of Education – Present 

Cece Zimmerman, SPWD – Present 

 

2:  Public Comment 
Comment may be limited to 5 minutes at the discretion of the Chairman. 

 There was no public comment.  



 Page 5 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

 
3: Review and Approve the Minutes for April 13, 2016 

 The minutes were approved as presented. The motion was made by Jim Earl and the second 
was by Jeff Kintop. Scott Anderson abstained from voting.   

 
 
4: Department of Public Safety, Parole and Probation 

A. 2003008 Case Files Modify 
Description:  
These are working files on Parolees and Probationers.  The files may contain, but are not limited to:  
applications for parole or probation, pre-sentence reports; sentence data sheets; disposition data 
sheets; discharge documentation; notes from parole officer; contact logs; progress reports; 
restitution agreements and schedules; probation violation agreements; related documentation. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Public Safety, Parole and Probation Division Records 
Officer. 
 
Justification for Modification of RDA 2003008: 
The change provides a more defined trigger event.  Currently, the records are microfilmed, and the 
retention requires research of the film, then manually cutting and splicing the film to remove the 
applicable records.  The modified retention will allow all records pertaining to a calendar year to be 
destroyed at the same time. 
 

Discussion and Vote: 
This item was approved as presented with no further discussion needed. The motion was 

made by Jim Earl and the second was by Kathryn Etcheverria. The vote was unanimous. 
 
5: Public Works Division 
 

A. 2016027 CIP Project Drawings New 
B. 2016028 CIP Project Files New 
C 2016029 CIP Project Files:  Structural And Testing 

Records 
 

New 

A. Recommended New RDA: 
Title:  CIP Project Drawings       RDA:  2016027 
Description:  
These are the drawings made for Capital Improvement Projects (CIP), and compliment the CIP Project File.  The 
records may contain, but are not limited to:  (a) Original and copies of:  site plans; working drawings (structural, 
mechanical, electrical and landscape), as built drawings, schematics, presentation drawings, architectural renderings and 
similar records, and; (b) Project specifications, bid documents and similar documents. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Public Works Division Records Officer. 
 
Justification for New RDA 2016027: 



 Page 6 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

Assembly Bill 125 of the 2015 Legislative Session changed the statute of limitation that action may 
be taken on construction projects.  The act became effective upon passage and approval on 
February 24, 2015.  The agency has requested records created before 2015 be retained according to 
the current retention period of 12 years.  To accommodate this request, new RDAs are being 
recommended so the records created before 2015 and currently stored in the Records Center can be 
retained the for the 12 years and records created after 2015 can be stored for 6 years. 
 
AB125 sec 17  NRS 11.202(1):  No action may be commenced against the owner, occupier or any 
person performing or furnishing the design planning, supervision or observation of construction, or 
the construction of an improvement to real property more than 6 years after the substantial 
completion of such an improvement…….. 
Title:  CIP Project Files        RDA:  2016028 
 
Description:  
These records are used to oversee and monitor Capital Improvement Projects (CIP’s) that have been authorized by the 
Legislature and under the administration of the State Public Works board. The files may include, but are not limited 
to:  A/E (Awards and Endorsements), Contracts/Endorsements File; Owner-Contractor 
Agreements/Insurance/Change Orders/Advertising Information File; Preconstruction Engineering Reports/ 
Inspector Reports/Lab Testing/Plan Check File; Budgets, Schedules and Estimates file; Energy Retrofit File, and, 
Correspondence File. 
  
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by the Public Works Division Records Officer. 
 
Justification for New RDA 2016028: 
 
Assembly Bill 125 of the 2015 Legislative Session changed the statute of limitation that action may 
be taken on construction projects.  The act became effective upon passage and approval on 
February 24, 2015.  The agency has requested records created before 2015 be retained according to 
the current retention period of 12 years.  To accommodate this request, new RDAs are being 
recommended so the records created before 2015 and currently stored in the Records Center can be 
retained the for the 12 years and records created after 2015 can be stored for 6 years. 
 
AB125 sec 17  NRS 11.202(1):  No action may be commenced against the owner, occupier or any 
person performing or furnishing the design planning, supervision or observation of construction, or 
the construction of an improvement to real property more than 6 years after the substantial 
completion of such an improvement…….. 
Title:  CIP Project Files:  Structural and Testing Records RDA:  2016029 

 
Description:  
These records document the structural calculations, testing and related records associated with capital improvement 
projects that are required to be filed (See NRS 341.145 (9)).  The files may contain, but are not limited to:  
Certificates of Occupancy, Soils testing records, Geothermal testing documents and Structural calculations. 

 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by the Public Works Division Records Officer. 
 



 Page 7 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

Justification for New RDA 2016029: 
 
Assembly Bill 125 of the 2015 Legislative Session changed the statute of limitation that action may 
be taken on construction projects.  The act became effective upon passage and approval on 
February 24, 2015.  The agency has requested records created before 2015 be retained according to 
the current retention period of 12 years.  To accommodate this request, new RDAs are being 
recommended so the records created before 2015 and currently stored in the Records Center can be 
retained the for the 12 years and records created after 2015 can be stored for 6 years. 
 
AB125 sec 17  NRS 11.202(1):  No action may be commenced against the owner, occupier or any 
person performing or furnishing the design planning, supervision or observation of construction, or 
the construction of an improvement to real property more than 6 years after the substantial 
completion of such an improvement…….. 
 

Discussion and Vote: 
This item was approved as amended, with the amendment of a change in the title of the 

record series to more accurately reflect the records that were created after 2015. The motion was 
made by Jim Earl and the second was by Jeff Kintop. The vote was unanimous. 
 
6: Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning Education Options, Private 
Schools 

A. 2007108 Private School Files:  Application 
Documentation 

Modify 

B. 2007107 Private School Files:  License Records Modify 
C. 2007110 Private School Files:  Operational Records Modify 
D. 
 

2009067 Private School Student Academic Records:  
Elementary Schools 

Modify 

E. 2009066 Private School Student Academic Records:  
Secondary Schools 

Modify 

F. 2016026 Private School Files:  Crisis Response 
Plans 

New 

G. 2016024 Private School Files:  License Records - 
Denied or Withdrawn  

New 

A. Recommended Modification: 
Title:  Private School Files:  Application Documentation   RDA: 2007108 
Description:  
This record series is used in the application process for licensing of private schools (See NRS and 
NAC chapter 394). The files may contain, but are not limited to: Sample catalog (NRS 394.251 (1)); 
Supplemental material (NAC 394.030 & 394.040); proposed advertisements; OSHA and fire 
department inspections; application financial documentation (NAC 394.140); facility plans and 
related documentation; related correspondence, and; similar documentation. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention period meets administrative needs. 



 Page 8 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

 
Justification for Modification RDA 2007108: 
Once the renewal application or declaration is received, previous submissions are obsolete.  The 
suggested revision allows the unessential records to be purged at time of renewal instead of one year 
later.  This change will help ensure the file only contains the current documentation and not 
unnecessary documents,  
 

B. Recommended Modification: 
Title:  Private School Files:  License Records     RDA: 2007107 
Description:  
This record series documents the licensing and monitoring of private schools (See NRS and NAC 
chapter 394). The records may contain, but are not limited to: Original applications (including 
renewals) (NRS 394.251 (1)); Surety bonds / certificate of deposit (NRS 394.251 (1)); Application 
investigation documentation (NRS 394.251 (2)); School inspections (NRS 394.245); Reviews; 
Related correspondence, and; Similar documentation. 
 
Authorized Retention: 
Retain for a period of four (4) calendar school years from the end of the school year expiration, revocation 
or closure of the school in which the school was closed. Program correspondence may be purged when no 
longer needed. 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention period meets administrative and legal needs. 
 
Justification for Modification RDA 2007107: 
The expiration or revocation of the license may be a different date from the closure of the school.  
The recommended change clarifies the trigger date. Since the agency’s records are based on a school 
year, the agency has requested to change to “end of school year” to align the retention with the 
school year.   
 
Recommended Disposition: 
Destroy Securely 
 

C. Recommended Modification: 
Title:  Private School Files:  Operational Records      RDA: 2007110 
Description:  
This record series is used in the monitoring process for licensing of private schools (See NRS and 
NAC chapter 394). The files may contain, but are not limited to: Crisis response plans (confidential, 
see NAC 394.168 to 394.1698); Owner / operations information (NAC 394.140 (2)(b)); Licensed 
personnel (NAC 394.050); Occupational personnel (NAC 394.160); Enrollment, attendance and 
progress reports (NRS 394.130); Related correspondence, and; Similar documentation. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 



 Page 9 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention period meets administrative needs. 
 
Justification for Modification RDA 2007110: 
The expiration or revocation of the license may be a different date from the closure of the school.  
The recommended change clarifies the trigger date.  A new record series was created to schedule the 
crisis response plans.  See RDA 2016026.  Since the agency’s records are based on a school year, the 
agency has requested to change to “end of school year” to align the retention with the school year.   
 

D. Recommended Modification: 
Title:  Private School Student Academic Records:  Elementary Schools  RDA: 2009067 
Description:  
These records document the academic records of individuals whose private elementary school went 
out of business (See NRS 394.341 (1)). The records may contain, but are not limited to: Academic 
Records; Pupil Progress Reports; Health records; Copies of basic skills test results; Counselor 
reports; Registration documents; Referrals; Conduct reports; Correspondence, and; Similar 
documents. 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention period meets administrative needs. 
 
Justification for Modification RDA 2009067: 
The original justification for the 3 year retention was based on NRS 11.190 for fraud or mistake.  
The 3 year retention should start based on the close of the school not when the agency received the 
records.  Since the agency’s records are based on a school year, the agency has requested to change 
to “end of school year” to align the retention with the school year.   
 

E. Recommended Modification: 
Title:  Private School Student Academic Records:  Secondary Schools   RDA: 2009066 
Description:  
These records document the academic records of individuals whose private secondary school went 
out of business (See NRS 394.341 (1)). The records may contain, but are not limited to: academic 
transcripts; pupil progress reports; health records; copies of basic skills test results; counselor 
reports; registration documents; referrals ;  conduct reports; related correspondence, and; similar 
documents 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention period meets administrative needs. 
 
Justification for Modification RDA 2009066: 



 Page 10 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

This record series had two retention periods.  The agency requested all records be kept for 50 years 
to eliminate the time required to purge records since they are sent as one file from the schools.  
Since the agency’s records are based on a school year, the agency has requested to change to “end of 
school year” to align the retention with the school year.   
 

F. Recommended New RDA: 
Title:  Private School Files:  Crisis Response Plans      RDA: 2016026 
Description:  
This record series is used in the monitoring process for the crisis response plans private schools (See NRS and NAC 
chapter 394). The files may contain, but are not limited to: Crisis response plans (confidential, see NAC 394.168 to 
394.1698); and related correspondence. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention period meets administrative needs. 
 
Justification for New RDA 2016026: 
The record is currently scheduled under RDA 2007110 “Private School Files:  Operational Records” 
which has a retention period of 4 years from the closure of the school.  The crisis plans are renewed 
annually and superseded records do not have continuing value.  Since the agency’s records are based 
on a school year, the agency has requested “end of school year” to align the retention with the 
school year.   
 

G. Recommended New RDA: 
Title:  Private School Files:  License Records – Denied or Withdrawn   RDA: 2016024 
Description:  
This record series documents the licensing and monitoring of private schools (See NRS and NAC chapter 394). The 
records may contain, but are not limited to: original applications (including renewals) (NRS 394.251(1)); surety 
bonds / certificate of deposit (NRS 394.251 (1)); application investigation documentation (NRS 394.251 (2)); 
school Inspections (NRS 394.245); reviews; sample catalog (NRS 394.251 (1)); supplemental material (NAC 
394.030 & 394.040); proposed advertisements; OSHA and fire department inspections; application financial 
documentation (NAC 394.140); facility plans and related documentation; related correspondence, and; similar 
documentation. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention period meets administrative needs. 
 
Justification for New RDA 2016024: 
A record series does not currently exist for these records.  A one year retention satisfies the agency’s 
administrative needs.  Since the agency’s records are based on a school year, the agency has 
requested “end of school year” to align the retention with the school year.   



 Page 11 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

 
Discussion and Vote: 

This item was approved as presented, with the exception of item G, which was tabled. Staff 
would like to look at the retention more to insure that it complies with an appeal process. The 
motion was made by Jim Earl and the second was by Kathryn Etcheverria. The vote was 
unanimous. 
 
7: Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning Education Options, Charter 
Schools 

A. 2009063 Charter Schools:  Not State Sponsored 
Written Charter 

Delete - Obsolete 

B. 2009062 Charter Schools Original Application Delete – Obsolete 
C. 2009064 State Board Sponsored Charter Schools 

(Approved) 
Delete – Obsolete 

D. 2009065 State Board Sponsored Charter Schools 
(Denied) 

Delete - Obsolete 

 
A. Recommended Deletion: 

 
Title:   Charter Schools:  Not Sponsored Written Charter     RDA: 2009063 
Description:  
These records are used for administrative purposes to monitor the continued operation of charter 
schools (See NRS chapter 386 and NAC chapter 387). The files may contain but are not limited to: 
Copy of application with related documentation; copy of written agreement;  Copy of the Amended 
Final Approved Application; Written determination; supplemental information (See NRS 386.520 
and NAC 386.140 to 150); related program correspondence, and; similar documentation. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
Delete this RDA 
 
Justification for Deletion of RDA 2009063: 
The records are held by the school sponsor who would follow the applicable record series on the 
Local Government Retention Schedule 
 

B. Recommended Deletion: 
 
Title:   Charter Schools Original Applications      RDA: 2009062 
Description:  
These records document the initial or renewal charter school applications reviewed by the 
Department for completeness (See NRS and NAC Chapters 386 & 387 especially NRS 386.520). 
The records may contain but are not limited to: Copy of application with related documentation; 
Letter of intent to form a charter school; Written determination; Supplemental information (See 
NRS 386.520 and NAC 386.140 to 150), and; Related program correspondence. 
Agency review: 



 Page 12 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
Delete this RDA 
 
Justification for Deletion of RDA 2009062: 
 
The records are held by the school sponsor who would follow the applicable record series on the 
Local Government Retention Schedule. 
 

C. Recommended Deletion: 
 
Title:   State Board Sponsored Charter Schools (Approved)       RDA: 2009064 
Description:  
These records are used to monitor the continued operation of charter schools (See NRS and NAC 
chapter 386 and 387) sponsored by the State Board of Education. The records may contain but are 
not limited to: Application and related documentation, including amendments; Written agreement; 
Monitoring / compliance / fiscal reports (See NRS and NAC chapters 386 and 387) and supportive 
documentation; Written notice of changes; Related program correspondence, and;  Similar 
documentation 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
Delete this RDA 
 
Justification for Deletion of RDA 2009064: 
 
The records were transferred to the State Public Charter School Authority when it was created in 
2011.  A new agency specific schedule was also created with the same retention and disposition.  See 
RDA 2011031 
 

D. Recommended Deletion: 
 
Title:   State Board Sponsored Charter Schools (Denied)                                       RDA: 2009065 
Description:  
These records document the denied applications for charter schools (See NRS and NAC chapter 
386) requesting sponsorship by the State Board of Education. The files may contain but are not 
limited to: Application; Written agreement; Related program correspondence, and; Similar 
documentation. 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Education, Career Readiness and Adult Learning 
Education Options, Private Schools Division Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
Delete this RDA 



 Page 13 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

 
Justification for Deletion of RDA 2009065: 
The records were transferred to the State Public Charter School Authority when it was created in 
2011.  A new agency specific schedule was also created with the same retention and disposition.  See 
RDA 2011032 
 
 

Discussion and Vote: 
This item was approved as presented with no further discussion needed. The motion was 

made by Jim Earl and the second was by Jeff Kintop. The vote was unanimous. 
 
8: Department of Administration, Library, Archives and Public Records, Archives and Records 

A. 2016017 Archives Accession Records – 
Memorandum of Transfer 

New 

B. 2016019 Archives Accession Records – 
Deaccession Receipt 

New 

C. 2016020 Archives Accession Records – Loan 
Receipt 

New 

D. 2016021 Archives Accession Records – Images 
License Agreement 

New 

 
A. Recommended New RDA: 

 
Title:   Archives Accession Records – Memorandum of Transfer     RDA: 2016017 
Description:  
This record series is used to document receipt of records to the State Archives (NRS 378.250).  The records may 
include, but are not limited to:  “Memorandum of Transfer” authorization forms (the information may include  - 
sending agency, name of sender, dates, number of boxes, contents of boxes, RDA number, disposition date, etc), index 
list, deeds of gift, receipts, and related correspondence. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention meets administrative needs. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by the State Archives Manager. 
 
Justification for New RDA 2016017: 
A record series does not currently exist for these records.  These records need to be retained 
permanently with the accessioned records. 
 

B. Recommended New RDA: 
Title:  Archives Accession Records – Deaccession Receipt     RDA: 2016019 
Description:  
This record series is used to document the transfer of records from the State Archives (NRS 378.250).  The records 
may include but are not limited to: “Deaccession Receipt”/Memorandum of Understanding authorization forms (the 
information may include -, name of transfer location, dates, number of boxes, contents of boxes, RDA number, 
disposition date, etc) index list, and related correspondence. 
 



 Page 14 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention period meets administrative needs. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by the State Archives Manager. 
 
Justification for New RDA 2016019: 
A record series does not currently exist for these records.  These records need to be retained 
permanently to document the deaccessioned records. 
 

C. Recommended New RDA: 
 
Title:  Archives Accession Records – Loan Receipt      RDA: 2016020 
Description:  
This record series is used to document the transfer of records from the State Archives (NRS 378.250).  The records 
may include but are not limited to: “Transfer Receipt”/Memorandum of Understanding authorization forms (the 
information may include -, name of transfer location, dates, number of boxes, contents of boxes, RDA number, 
disposition date, etc) index list, and related correspondence. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by the State Archives Manager. 
 
Justification for New RDA 2016020: 
A record series does not currently exist for these records.  A four year retention period is being 
recommended based on NRS 11.190(2)(c) 
 

NRS 11.190  Periods of limitation.  Except as otherwise provided in NRS 40.4639, 
125B.050 and 217.007, actions other than those for the recovery of real property, unless 
further limited by specific statute, may only be commenced as follows:       2.  Within 4 
years: 
      (a) An action on an open account for goods, wares and merchandise sold and 
delivered. 
      (b) An action for any article charged on an account in a store. 
      (c) An action upon a contract, obligation or liability not founded upon an 
instrument in writing. 

 
D. Recommended New RDA: 

 
Title:  Archives Accession Records – Images License Agreement    RDA: 2016021 
Description:  
This record series is used to document the agreement to use images of records from the State Archives in programs or 
publications.  The records may include but are not limited to: Images License Agreement, and related correspondence. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention period meets administrative needs. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by the State Archives Manager. 

http://leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-040.html#NRS040Sec4639
http://leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-125B.html#NRS125BSec050
http://leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-217.html#NRS217Sec007


 Page 15 
Agenda #3, June 8, 2016 Minutes for Approval 

 
Justification for New RDA 2016021: 
A record series does not currently exist for these records.  As the “Images License Agreement” 
states that the “License Term shall be in perpetuity”, the agreement should also be kept 
permanently.  
 

Discussion and Vote: 
This item was approved as presented with no further discussion needed. The motion was 

made by Jim Earl and the second was by Kathryn Etcheverria. . The vote was unanimous. 
 

 
9: Nevada Department of Transportation Update (discussion only) 

 The Nevada Department of Transportation has a fee schedule again for Public Records 
Requests. It will be listed on their web page within the next week.  

 
10: Discuss future agenda items:  
Department of Public Safety:  General Services Division 
Commission on Ethics 
Gaming Control Board 
Environmental Protection:  Bureau of Industrial Site Cleanup 
Nevada System of Higher Education 
  

 
11: Public Comment 
Comment may be limited to 5 minutes at the discretion of the Chairman 

 There was no public comment.  
 

12: Determine time of next meeting 

 The next meeting will be August 10, 2016 at 1:15 pm in the Nevada State Library and 
Archives Board room.  

 
13: Adjourn 

 The meeting was adjourned at 2:21 pm with the motion made by Jim Earl. The vote was 
unanimous.  

 
 



Agenda #4, August 10, 2016 Page 16 
 

4: FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
Gaming Control Board:  Investigations Division, Corporate Securities Section 

A. 1993240 Nevada Gaming Company Files Modify 
B. 1991804 Underwriters Files Delete 

 
A. Recommended Modification: 

 
Title:   Nevada Gaming Company Files 
 RDA: 1993240 

Description:  

These records document publicly traded corporations involved in gaming, and private companies 
involved in gaming that are required to report compliance and foreign gaming. The files may 
contain, but are not limited to: general correspondence, gaming applications, lists of stockholders, 
press releases/news articles, control letters, S.E.C. filings, annual reports, proxy materials, 
articles of incorporation, foreign gaming reporting, involvement and similar information, and 
compliance reporting files. 
 
Disposition:  
Retain these records for a period of ten (10) four (4) calendar years from the date of the record.  

 
Authorized Retention: 
Destroy Securely 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention meets administrative needs. 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by the Gaming Control Board’s Record Officer. 
 
Justification for Modification of RDA 1993240: 
The publicly traded companies documented in this schedule are reviewed for compliance every three 
years.  A four year retention schedule is being recommended to ensure the previous three years are 
available for each review period. 
 
 

B. Recommended Deletion: 
Title:  Underwriters Files 
 RDA: 1991804 

Description:  

This record series applies to current prospective underwriters (Investment Banking Firms) for 
public offerings of stocks or securities issued by corporations involved in gaming. This record 
series may include, but is not limited to: general compiled information, pending/current litigation, 
financial status, and similar information.  

 
Authorized Retention: 
Retain these records for a period of three (3) calendar years from the date an underwriter is no 
longer involved with gaming operations in Nevada 
 

Recommended Disposition: 

Destroy Securely  
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
Delete this RDA 



Agenda #4, August 10, 2016 Page 17 
 

 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by the Gaming Control Board’s Records Officer. 
 
Justification for Deletion of RDA 1991804: 
The Gaming Control Board no longer reviews underwriters’ files.  The last of the files were destroyed per 
retention approximately 15 years ago. 



Agenda #5, August 10, 2016 Page 18 
 

5: FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
Department of Public Safety, General Services Division, Fiscal Unit 
 

A. 2016011 Fee Based Accounts Receivable Customer 
Files 

New 

    
A. Recommended New RDA: 

Title:  Fee Based Accounts Receivable Customer Files RDA:  2016011 

 
Description:  
These records document the applications and financial accounts for applicants for Civil Name 
Check, Civil Applicant or Brady Accounts.  The file may include, but is not limited to:  application 
and supporting documentation, related correspondence. 

 
Authorized Retention:   
Retain these records for a period of four (4) fiscal years from the end of the fiscal year in which 
the account was closed. 

 
Recommended Disposition:   

Destroy Securely 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
Retention meets administrative and audit needs.   
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Division of Public Safety, General Services Division Records Officer. 
 
Justification for New RDA 2016011: 
A current schedule does not exist for this record series.  When an applicant for a Civil Name Check, Civil 
Applicant or Brady Account is approved, a financial account is opened.  This account acts as a revolving 
account similar to a credit card.  Invoices are sent when any transactions are billed against the account.  
This records series contains the original application with supporting documentation along with any 
correspondence.  The account can be closed per notification from the applicant that the business is 
closed or sold, another agency that the applicant must file with notifies the Department of Public Safety 
General Services Division that the applicant’s license is no longer in good standing, or if the account is 
sent to the Controller’s Office Debt Collections Unit.  The account remains open and no renewal is 
required as long as the account remains in good standing.  The applicant must show proof of Current 
State of Nevada Business License, and other required licensure such as a Federal Firearms License for 
Brady Accounts.  A four year retention is being recommended to allow for the FBI three year audit cycle. 



Agenda #6, August 10, 2016 Page 19 
 

 
6: FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Department of Administration, Human Resource Management, Central Records 
A. 2003100 Employee Service Jacket Modify 
    

A. Recommended Modification: 
Title:  Employee Service Jacket 
 RDA: 2003100 

Description:  

This record series is the official personnel file [for people in the employ of the Executive Branch of the 
State of Nevada] retained by the Division of Human Resource Management Central Records. The 
files may contain, but are not limited to: Hiring documentation, including applications with associated 
documents; State and federal forms, including Employment Eligibility Verification (I-9), Employment 
Status Maintenance; Transaction, etc.; Disciplinary action documentation; Resignation documentation; 
Performance evaluation training documentation (See NAC 284.498 (5)) , and; Related correspondence 
 
Authorized Retention: 
Retain these records for a period of [thirty (30)] ten (10) calendar years from the year of separation from 
service. Records may be purged from the files under the following circumstances: (1) by order of a 
Nevada Court of record, (2); by order of a hearing officer -- see NRS 284.091 & 284.390, (3); by order of 
the Employee - Management Committee -- see NRS 284.073 (5) and Attorney General Letter of Opinion 
dated Sept. 29, 1993, (4); by order of stipulation, agreed statement, consent order or default in 
accordance with NRS 233B.12, (5); the Division of Human Resource Management may remove any 
record which they determine by law or regulation should not be filed or any duplications of records, or as 
ordered by the Personnel Commission, and (6); by order of the Department Director or Agency 
Administrator in accordance with the instructions found in the Attorney General Letter of Opinion dated 
Sept. 29, 1993. 
 
Recommended Disposition: 
Destroy Securely 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Department of Administration, Human Resource Management Records 
Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
The retention period meets administrative needs. 
 
Justification for Modification RDA 2003100: 
The Division of Human Resource Management requests changing the Employee Service Jacket 
description from “Executive Branch” employees to those files “retained by the Division of Human 
Resource Management Central Records”.  The Division’s Central Records houses official personnel files 
for Executive Branch employees, as well as official personnel files for Judicial Branch employees, 
including the Commission on Judicial Discipline.   
 
The Division Resource Management also requests that the retention period of official personnel files 
retained by the Division of Human Resource Management Central Records be reduced from a period of 
thirty (30) calendar years to a period of ten (10) calendar years after the date of separation.   
   
A reduction to the retention period would result in numerous benefits to the State of Nevada: 
 
Creates efficiency by reducing staff time dedicated to records storage tasks. 
This recommendation better facilitates the legislatively approved NEATS conversion, which is currently in 
process. 



Agenda #6, August 10, 2016 Page 20 
 

Currently, there is a shortage of both electronic and physical storage space, which could be immediately 
reduced. 
Possible elimination of the Hummingbird program, which is only necessary due to the current retention 
period. 
  
The Division of Human Resource Management Central Records Manager has suggested a retention 
period of ten (10) years after the date of separation with exceptions made for ongoing personnel issues. 
 
 The State Records Committee, as established in statute under NRS 239.073 1993, has the 
authority to revise the current retention schedule.  Official state records may only be disposed of in 
accordance with the retention and disposition schedule approved by the Committee. 
 
In June of 1987, prior to the existence of the State Records Committee, the Board of Examiners approved 
a six (6) year retention period after the separation of the employee.   
In May of 1995, the State Records Committee approved increasing the retention period to sixty (60) 
years.  A review of the Committee minutes does not prove helpful in determining the reason for this 
change.   
In August of 2003, the State Records Committee reduced the retention period from sixty (60) years to 
forty-five (45) years.  A review of the minutes from this meeting found that a “forty-five year period is 
sufficient to document work history and enough time for beneficiary actions”. 
In November of 2010, the State Records Committee again reduced the retention period from forty-five 
(45) years to the current period of thirty (30) years.  A review of the Committee minutes from this meeting 
indicate the recommended change was based on the conclusion that a thirty (30) year retention period 
after employee separation was a reasonable amount of time to resolve any work related issues.   
 
Research has found that, in general, the retention period for employee personnel files are far less than 
our current retention period of thirty (30) years. 
  

Arizona After employee terminated or term 
ended. 

5 years 

Arkansas After separation or until closure of 
unresolved personnel issue. 

5 years 

CA State Personnel Board Retain according to type of separation. 5 year min 

Colorado Retain 10 years after separation. 10 years 

Idaho Retain 5 years after separation. 5 years 

Montana Retain for 10 years after termination. 10 years 

New Mexico Destroy 50 years after file is created. 50 years 

NY State Archives Destroy 6 years after separation from 
agency unless otherwise permitted 
under labor agreement. 

6 years 

Oregon Retain for 10 years after employee 
separation. 

10 years 

Utah Retain for 7 years after separation. 7 years 

Washington Retain for 5 years after termination. 5 years 

Wyoming Retain for 10 years after separation. 10 years 

EEOC Retain records for 2 years. 2 years 

SHRM Website Retain 7 years after separation. 7 years 



Agenda #6, August 10, 2016 Page 21 
 

FSLA Payroll records 3 years 

National Archives & Records 
Administration (NARA) 

Retain 2 years after separation or 
transfer. 

2 years 

 
The recommendation at this time is to reduce the current retention period for official personnel files from 
thirty (30) years to ten (10) years.  This recommended change does not conflict with any state or federal 
laws or regulations and is supported by the Division of Human Resource Management Central Records 
Manager. 
 
 
 

 



Agenda #7, August 10, 2016 Page 22 
 

7: FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
Governor’s Office of Economic Development 

A. 2003005 Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Records 

Modify 

 
A. Recommended Modification: 

 
Title:   Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Records 
 RDA: 2003005 

Description:  

This record series is used to document and control the granting of funds to counties and cities for this CDBG 
financed through the U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) under 42 USC s.3535 (d) and 42 USC 
s.5301 to 5320 and 24 CFR Part 570, Subpart I (24 CFR 570.480 to 570.497). The files may include copies of:  
proposals, award notice, narrative & financial reports, budgets and financial (accounting) documents, request for 
funds, invoices, notes, correspondence and related documents. 
 
Authorized Retention: 
Retain for five (5) fiscal years from the date of the close out letter from HUD.  end of the calendar year in 

which of the grant project was closed out.  
 
Recommended Disposition: 

Destroy Securely 
 
Agency review: 
The appraisal is supported by Governor’s Office of Economic Development Records Officer. 
 
NSLAPR staff recommendation: 
This RDA meets administrative and fiscal needs. 
 
Justification for Modification of RDA 2003005: 
The recommended change clarifies the trigger event date.  The year the project was closed and date of 
the close out letter from HUD are two different dates.  For instance, the close out year for grants from 
2010 and the year in which the close out letter is dated is 2016.  Thus, the records should be destroyed in 
2021.  As currently written, the records would be destroyed in 2017. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Committee to Approve Schedules for 
the Retention 

and Disposition of Official State Records 
 

August 10, 2016 
Attachment “A” 



1 
 

RECORDS RETENTION SUMMARY 

 

 Pg. # Reason for Change 

1 6 of 37 The 8 NSHE institutions don’t all have the same titles for offices.  For 
example, some have a Provost’s Office while others have an Office of 
Academic Affairs.  The office of the final action or decision was added to 
accommodate this fact. 

2 8 of 37 During training on this schedule, participants stated that some documents 
not typically considered confidential may contain a social security number or 
other personally identifiable information.  This addition was made so that 
any record containing confidential information will be securely destroyed at 
the appropriate time. 

3 9 of 37 After the schedule was released, a controller’s office noted that 
“workpapers” was a more accurate term to use than “documents.” 

4 9 of 37 After the schedule was released, a controller’s office noted that cash 
register tapes, cash receipts and credit card receipts should all be kept for 
the same time period.  Credit card receipts was then added to the cash 
register tapes/cash receipts entry. 

5 9 of 37 After the schedule was released, a controller’s office noted that cash 
register tapes, cash receipts and credit card receipts should all be kept for 
the same time period.  Credit card receipts was then added to the cash 
register tapes/cash receipts entry. 

6 13 of 37 After the schedule was released, an administrator noted that NSHE 
institutions do many, many types of training, the records for all of which are 
not necessary to keep; for example, training offered on using Excel would 
not be necessary to retain.  For this reason, the change was made to clarify 
that only records of mandatory training were required to be maintained. 

7 14 of 37 After the schedule was released, a financial aid administrator pointed out 
the need to distinguish between Title IV and non-Title IV scholarships. 

8 15 of 37 After the schedule was released, an administrator pointed out that the 
period for retaining contracts should run from the date of termination of the 
contract, rather than from the date of the contract.   

9 17 of 37 After the schedule was released, an administrator pointed out that the 
period for retaining bids and resulting contracts should run from the date of 
termination of the contract, rather than from the date of the contract.   

10 20 of 37 After the schedule was released, it was determined that NSHE institutions 
do not conduct polygraph interviews and do not have polygraph records. 

 



2 
 

 Pg. # Reason for Change 

11 20 of 37 After the schedule was released, a Human Resources administrator pointed 
out that position descriptions should be retained as long as the person is in 
the same position plus 3 years, and that the date that the description was 
developed does not matter. 

12 20 of 37 After the schedule was released, a Human Resources administrator pointed 
out that recruitment records need only be kept for 3 years, rather than 7. 

13 22 of 37 After the schedule was released, a business administrator pointed out that 
the original language was ambiguous and inaccurate; changes were made 
to correct and clarify the entry.   

14 23 of 37 After the schedule was released, a library professional pointed out that 
records of users are not kept so the language was changed to clarify that 
the records to be maintained were not those of users, but of the physical 
location of the material for inventory purposes.  The physical location would 
be based on the location of the institution borrowing or loaning the material.  
These records are not confidential so the disposition need not be secure.   

15 23 of 37 After the schedule was released, a library professional pointed out that 
records of users are not kept so the language was changed to clarify that 
the records to be maintained were not those of users, but of the physical 
location of the material for inventory purposes.  The physical location would 
be based on the location of the institution borrowing or loaning the material.  
These records are not confidential so the disposition need not be secure.   

16 28 of 37 This deletion was made because advising files were already addressed with 
an appropriate retention period five (5) entries lower in the schedule.   

17 30 of 37 After the schedule was released, a financial aid professional pointed out that 
Title IV retention periods applied to direct loan documents.   

18 31 of 37 After the schedule was released, it was noted that different retention periods 
had been provided for course work in traditional classes and course work in 
online classes.  The retention periods should be the same; changes were 
made to make them the same. 

19 31 of 37 After the schedule was released, it was noted that different retention periods 
had been provided for course work in traditional classes and course work in 
online classes.  The retention periods should be the same; changes were 
made to make them the same. 

20 31 of 37 After the schedule was released, a financial aid professional pointed out the 
need to distinguish between Title IV and non-Title IV financial aid records.  It 
was also pointed out that for non-Title IV records the retention period should 
run from the date of the award rather than from the date of graduation.   



3 
 

 Pg. # Reason for Change 

21 32 of 37 After the schedule was released, it was determined that the retention period 
is determined by the US Department of Health & Human Services, which 
period is subject to change. 

22 32 of 37 After the schedule was released, it was determined that the retention period 
is determined by the US Federal Student Aid (Title IV), which period is 
subject to change. 

23 33 of 37 After the schedule was released, the need to distinguish between types of 
letters of recommendation became apparent; these changes reflect the 
distinctions.   

24 33 of 37 After the schedule was released, the need to distinguish between types of 
letters of recommendation became apparent; these changes reflect the 
distinctions.   

25 33 of 37 After the schedule was released, it was determined that the retention period 
is determined by the US Department of Health & Human Services, which 
period is subject to change. 

26 34 of 37 After the schedule was released, it was determined that NSHE institutions 
do not have any petitions so this entry was deleted. 

27 34 of 37 After the schedule was released, it was determined that readmission 
records are maintained either in the office of Admissions and Records or in 
the Graduate or Professional School; they are not maintained in the office of 
Academic Affairs. 

28 34 of 37 After the schedule was released, it was noted that this entry was duplicative 
of the non-Title IV scholarship entry.   

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Committee to Approve Schedules for 
the Retention 

and Disposition of Official State Records 
 

August 10, 2016 
Attachment “B” 












































































	August 10, 2016 Committee Packet
	2016 05 `19 Records Changes Summary
	2016 05 19 schedule with proposed changes

